Minutes
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
Wednesday, February 10, 2010, 7:00 PM

MEMBERS: Chair Al Hartkopf, Vice Chair Tommy Sikes, Carlarisford, Dave Remington,

ABSENT:

STAFF:

PUBLIC:

ITEM #1:

ITEM #2:

MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #3:

MOTION:

VOTE:

MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #4:

and Eddie Sain.
Bradley Curelop, absence excused.

Senior Planner Tom King, Planning Director Marg&tauth, and Town Attorney
Bob Hornik.

Joe Phelps, Howard McAdams and Bill Whitmore.

Call meeting to order and confirm the presnce of a quorum.
Chair Al Hartkopf called the meeting to order a@@:p.m. and confirmed the
presence of a quorum.

Consideration of additions to the agenda.

Mr. King stated that Mr. Bill Whitmore was appeayiat this meeting in order to
interview for an upcoming open seat on the Board. Wihg alos noted that the
Board needed to review the final Order for the Afaghics, LLC appeal from

October 14, 2009. Ms. Lunsford suggested the atikems #4 and #5 should be
renumbered so that Item #5 was heard first.

Ms. Lunsford moved to adjust the agenda to renumber Item #4eta #5, and
Item #5 to Item #4, and add an Item #5b regardnegappeal from AA Graphics.
Mr. Sain seconded.

Unanimous.

Approval of the January 13, 2010 minutes,and approval of the January 13,
2010 Closed Session minutes.

Mr. Remington moved to adopt the minutes of the January 13, 2086ting as
submitted.Mr. Sain seconded.
Unanimous.

Ms. Lunsford moved to adopt the minutes of the January 13, 20ldZed
Session meeting as submittddr. Sain seconded.
Unanimous.

Case #BA-04-2010 — Variance request fromak Phelps of Orange County
Farm Bureau. The request is for a 5-foot variance rbm the 10-foot
freestanding sign setback of the EDD (Economic Delpment District)

zoning district to allow for the placement of a frestanding sign. The subject



property is located at 110 Millstone Drive (Orange County Tax Map
Reference #4.45.R..27).

Mr. Hartkopf opened the public hearing and Mr. Ksigore in himself and Joe
Phelps. Mr. King provided some brief informati@garding the variance request,
noting the request was for a 5-foot variance fréva 10-foot freestanding sign
setback of the EDD zoning district to allow for thlecement of a freestanding
sign. He referred the Board to the as-built suriregjuded in their packets,
pointing out where the applicant wanted to place fileestanding sign, which
would be 4 feet from the back of the curb. Mr. ¢(stated it was an 8-foot long
sign, and that would leave 5 feet between the Hadvvay and the actual sign. He
said that Attachment #3 was a copy of the propsggdwhich matched the other
signage in the Old Mill Business Park.

Mr. King stated that staff had gone through theumegl findings and did not

support the granting of a variance, noting it did meet the first finding. He said
the applicant’s original property before it was eeped did not show any
indication to staff that it would have precludeck tlocation of the building,

parking and a sign. Mr. King said as to the secfanding, this property was

being used as a land use allowed in the EDD zodistgict, and whether or not
the alleged hardship resulted from the action @ction of the applicant he
supposed could be debatable. He said the appScamgineer did not leave a lot
of room on site for a sign of that size and stdenhthe 10-foot setback. Mr. King
said there were restrictive covenants in the EDdD did extend to signage but did
not know if the applicant could meet those requists.

Mr. King said the third finding regarded whethee tranting of the variance for
the sign would substantially interfere or injure tinghts of others whose property
would be affected if the variance was allowed. dd&l staff could not find a

reason that, if granted, it would substantiallyerféere or injure the rights of

others. Mr. King said there were other businegsése Old Mill Business Park

that had signage that was close to the right-of-vaag did not meet the

requirements of the EDD standards.

Mr. King said the fourth finding was that the vawga was in harmony with and
served the general intent and purpose of the Zorindinance and the
Comprehensive Plan. He said staff had also lo@kdte Vision 2010 Plan and
you could make an argument that the variance woolde in harmony with Goal
C in that document, which was to improve and pitotbe economic vitality of

non-residential development. Mr. King said objeet? of that Goal was to
improve conformity with the Zoning Ordinance by @rmg nonconformities and
retrofitting developed sites. He said althought llmguage spoke to existing
nonconformities you could possibly extend that tee tcreation of new

nonconformities which the granting of this variamgzuld do.

Mr. King said the last finding was that allowingetivariance would result in
substantial justice being done considered by thaipulenefits intended to be

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



secured by the Ordinance, and the individual hapdstmat would be suffered by
the failure of the Board to grant the variance. ddal the sign regulations were
adopted to control the location and size of sigimg| granting the variance would
benefit the applicant and the property owner buthéd the potential of

undermining the purposes of the Zoning Ordinande. King said every variance

granted chipped away at a standard and openedaie fdr other variances;

however, variances were site specific and casefgpec

Mr. King said the reasons just stated were whyf'steécommendation was that
the variance should not be granted.

Mr. Hartkopf said that site plan approval was gednfor construction of that
office building in April 2009, and asked by whichiopess that approval was
granted. Mr. King stated it was a staff site pdgoproval. Mr. Hartkopf said in
the paperwork submitted for that site plan wasehsgnage noted on the site
plan. Mr. King replied no. Mr. Hartkopf asked wasasually included. Mr. King
replied not always.

Mr. Hornik stated if the applicant was asking fosign at that point it would be
included, but did not believe that was the caséhis instance. Mr. King said
many times it was left off because the signage wdd determined by another
party, so it was not included in the site plan. $4&d the plans did show the
building setback and the parking and sign setbatfextive in the EDD, so you
would assume that they left some area for a sigmmaybe not for one that was 8
feet long.

Mr. Sikes stated he had visited the site and whekihg at the sign the applicant
was proposing it appeared it would block sightatise for traffic exiting the site.

Mr. King said for this sign, about 2 feet of thading edge of the sign would fall
within that sight triangle.

Mr. Sikes said with the amount of traffic in thaea, he believed the sign would
create a visibility issue for traffic.

Mr. Hartkopf asked that the Board consider whettrenot to recuse him from
consideration of this issue based on the fact fleaind Mr. Phelps had been
friends for some time, and he had supported higlidany for office as Mr.
Phelps had supported his. He said that friendslaip not something out of the
ordinary but it was up to the Board to determineeifshould be recused.

Mr. Hornik stated that friendship did not cons#tat legal conflict of interest, but
it was right to disclose it. He said if Mr. Harf¥oor the Board believed it would
be better if Mr. Hartkopf did not participate, thére Board could vote to recuse
him. Mr. Hornik said if Mr. Hartkopf were excuseithere would have to be a
unanimous vote of the Board to grant the variabheeause there had to be at least

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #5:

4 votes in favor. He added that you would haveawee a direct financial interest
or stake in the outcome in order to have a legafliod of interest.

Mr. Hartkopf said as well, the applicant had a tiggha hearing by the full Board,
and the applicant could decide to delay considanadf the variance until the full
Board could be present.

Mr. Hornik said if Mr. Hartkopf felt that he coultbt be objective, then the Board
should recuse him. But, he said, Mr. Hartkopf dosay he would be able to
judge the application fairly, but if not then theght thing to do would be to recuse
him.

Mr. Phelps said he would not benefit financially thyy variance, noting he was
just a member of the Board of Directors for thenkaBureau which was a
volunteer board.

Mr. Sikes stated he had found Mr. Hartkopf to beecdive in all his
deliberations, even in ones like this where he tiiadlosed a relationship other
than financial or legal. He said he saw no rededopelieve Mr. Hartkopf would
not be objective in this case.

After a short discussion, the Board identified agdl reason for Mr. Hartkopf to
be recused.

Joe Phelps stated he understood that Ms. Hautred¢edeave early, and offered
to have his application wait until the next itemsmaeard. Mr. Hornik said

procedurally the Board could recess the hearinghenmatter, open the hearing
on the Colonial Inn, conduct that hearing, and tb@me back to this matter. Mr.
Phelps said he was willing to do that.

Ms. Lunsford moved to temporarily recess this application, Hbarnext item,
and then come back and reopen this itdfn. Remington seconded.
Unanimous.

Case #BA-03-2010 — Appeal of an adverse deion of the Zoning Officer
submitted by Francis Henry of Colonial Inn, LLC. The appeal relates to staff
finding the repair work completed at the Colonial Inn is insufficient to satisfy
the repair order issued pursuant to the “Prevention of Demolition by
Neglect” provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. The poperty is located at 153
West King Street (Orange County Tax Map Reference 4t36.A.4A) and is
zoned R-20 (Medium Intensity Residential)/HD (Histac District) Overlay.

Ms. Hauth was sworn in. Mr. Hartkopf disclosedttha had received a phone
call from Mr. Henry yesterday evening but they dat discuss the issues related
to the case. He said Mr. Henry had offered todgertain documents to his
home which he had advised should be delivered toKifrg, and believed those

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



were the documents that had been placed at theis feis evening. Mr. King
confirmed that was the case.

Mr. Hornik said he had been led to believe that Menry would be out of the

country at this time which was why he was askirgg the matter be continued to
the March 10, 2010 meeting. But, he said, Mr. iemas in the country but had
indicated he was unavailable to attend the meeting.

Mr. Hartkopf stated Mr. Henry had indicated to Hast evening that he and his
attorney would be out of State this evening on lagobusiness matter.

Mr. Hornik said it was his understanding that Mreridy would prefer that his
appeal be heard in March, and staff had indicatetimn that the Board would
have to make that decision.

Mr. Hartkopf said there were reasons why he had neguested that this
application be delayed until March. He said upeading the materials delivered
with the packet, it was Mr. Henry’s position that Wwas given a list of things to
do and he had done that list of things. Mr. Hastkeaid the question then
became when the order was to be vacated, and #satwvy he had requested that
Mr. Hornik be present this evening.

Mr. Hartkopf said as he read the statute he did firat anything that even
intimated that the order was satisfied, and if tbeder was completed then
another order would have to happen. He said heveel that was the crux of Mr.
Henry's case, in that from his perspective untther list of items was delivered
to him that he was done. Mr. Hornik said he ba&dthe staff narrative would
provide a better understanding of the factual sitnaand what the dispute
actually was. Mr. Hartkopf said he did not knovatthhe wanted to rule on this
tonight, but it occurred to him that this had athgdaken a considerable amount
of time and it was time for it to be settled.

Ms. Hauth provided an overview of the major poinisting that the entire history
of the events was contained in the packet of nageriShe said about this time
last year she had issued an order following a putdaring detailing 12 items that
were necessary to bring the property into compkase that the building would
no longer be subject to Demolition by Neglect.

Mr. Hornik interjected that the order of Demolititny Neglect had been issued
after a hearing and after Mr. Henry had had theodppity to be heard, and Mr.
Henry had chosen not to attend the hearing. MathHsaid that was correct.

Ms. Hauth said after issuance of the order, Mr.iférad begun to move through
the list of items and had requested and receivadnsions as necessary as
additional work had been identified that was natlyerelevant to the order. She
said they had moved along reasonably well givensttape of the project, but

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



work had then ceased and Mr. Henry had not askednp further extensions on
the timeframe to comply with the order. Ms. Hawhid that Mr. Henry’s
timeframe had expired at the end of the calendar,yand staff had then
conducted a site inspection to see if everythinghenlist had been satisfied. She
said everything on the list had not been satisted, she had notified Mr. Henry
of that. Ms. Hauth said, in her mind, the issuentbecame a zoning violation, in
that Mr. Henry had received the order and was toagbthe property into
compliance, which he had not done. She said sgridm Henry the notice that
he had not done everything he needed to do hadeted the appeal period,
which was when Mr. Henry chose to appeal and iteccghat he did not agree
that the list had not been satisfied. Ms. Hauild 84r. Henry believed that the
order should only be based on the citizen’s compligtter that had caused the
hearing and subsequent order and not based ortatiedscision, and therefore
only things visible from the public right-of-wayahid need to be repaired.

Mr. Hornik asked Ms. Hauth to testify as to what fhrocess was from the time
Mr. Reece had filed his letter of complaint. Hedshe believed that would

illustrate to the Board what he believed was Mrnhé&s issue versus what the
staff's position was with respect to the order.

Mr. Hartkopf said he did not believe the ordinaspeke to a complaint brought
by a citizen that alleged violations. Mr. Horni&id what the ordinance did say
was that a complaint started the process. Mr.Kdpftsaid that the order issued
by staff was mentioned specifically in the ordingnbut not the sum or the
contents of the complaint. He asked was it stgifisition that Mr. Henry had not
completed what had been contained in the order.. Msuth responded

“absolutely.”

Mr. Hornik said if he understood Mr. Henry's positi there were 7 items in Mr.
Reece’s letter, and Mr. Henry was saying that rtedwanpleted those 7 items so
he was done. Mr. Hornik said staff’'s position what the letter of complaint
came in, and whether it said 1 thing or 7 thingsvéis what had spurred the
investigation. He said staff did the investigataord prepared a report, and if staff
determined that there may be Demolition by Negdlleeh the matter was brought
before the HDC (Historic District Commission), tH®C reviewed it, and if the
HDC determined that it appeared that DemolitionN@glect was going on, then
the HDC issued an order to the Planning Directothédd a hearing on the
possibility of Demolition by Neglect.

Mr. Hartkopf asked if everyone on the Board underdtthat point, and did
everyone who had read the ordinance believe thdtetovhat the ordinance
indicated. There was no disagreement voiced b{tad.

Mr. Hornik said the hearing was held last Januaryligected by the HDC, and
notice had been sent to Mr. Henry advising him led hearing to determine
whether there was in fact Demolition by Neglect ngoion, and if that

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



determination was made that she would issue arr sadeng what needed to be
done in order to abate the ongoing Demolition bylNet. He said that Mr.

Henry had not attended the hearing although hegines notice of it, and staff

presented a detailed presentation at that heariny. Hornik said after the

hearing was closed, a few days later Ms. Hauth isaded the Order of

Demolition by Neglect and that order had 12 or mtems that Mr. Henry was

charged with completing by a certain date and at thas done then that would
stop the ongoing Demolition by Neglect that hadrbekentified and he would

have satisfied the order.

Mr. Hornik said the issue here was that Mr. Heragl batisfied 6 or 7 of the 12 or
more items that were in Ms. Hauth’s order, but nohéhe others. He said Mr.

Henry's position was that the items he had satisfiere the items contained in
Mr. Reece’s complaint letter, and believed that ah$ie had to do based on his
interpretation of the ordinance.

Ms. Hauth said in receiving the corrective order, Menry had not appealed any
of the items at that time, and they had been diigemoving through the list.
Now, she said, Mr. Henry was saying that he did hmte to do the remaining
items on the list. Ms. Hauth said the ordinances vedout prevention of
Demolition by Neglect, and if a condition was englrng a condition on the
north side and it was found to be present on théhsside, it was endangering the
structure just as much and it did not matter. §hd once the complaint was filed
and staff was on the property for site inspectiath Wir. Henry’'s permission, he
had participated in the inspection and had nevestipned being on all sides of
the property and documenting all conditions althobg had ample opportunity to
do so.

Mr. Hartkopf said the ordinance indicated a pransior appeal for economic
hardship. Ms. Hauth said that was correct, by Wémry had not filed that appeal.
Mr. Hartkopf said there was another provision that Henry had 14 days to
appeal the Order of Demolition by Neglect to theaBbof Adjustment. Ms.
Hauth said that was also correct, and Mr. Henryr@diled that appeal.

Mr. Hornik said it appeared from reading Mr. Hemryappeal letter that his
position seemed to be that when the ordinance tigedord “site” it meant the
specific location on the building where the commiahad identified that
Demolition by Neglect was going on. He said tthat Board would need to make
that interpretation, stating that elsewhere indfdnance it was clear that the site
was intended to be the property on which the sirectwas alleged to be
undergoing Demolition by Neglect.

Mr. Remington said in reading the materials, he t@athe to the conclusion that
the interpretation of the word “site” was the keythe appeal. He said with due
respect to the staff's interpretation of that, heuld feel much more comfortable
deliberating after they had had the opportunityhéar Mr. Henry’s side of the

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



matter if he had indeed expressed interest in cgrbefore the Board in March.
Mr. Remington said he believed the Board’s delibens would be less biased if
they had the chance to hear Mr. Henry’s arguments.

Mr. Hornik said his point was that the Board hadl lthe chance to hear Mr.
Henry's argument, and that chance was tonight.s&ie just as with the hearing
in January, Mr. Henry had chosen not to attenavizaitever reason.

Mr. Sikes said when reading through the materidl aniting the site, you could
see where some work had been done on the west Bigle .he said, the east and
south sides of the structure were in “horrible” dion, with rotted wood and
obvious disrepair. Mr. Sikes said once this preceas started you could plainly
determine that the structure needed repairs.

Mr. Hornik said it was completely up to the Boardhether they wanted to
provide Mr. Henry with an additional opportunity &ppear, but he wanted to
make sure the Board understood the staff's positide said part of his concern
as the attorney representing staff and counsehegBioard was that Mr. Henry
had received the process he was entitled to. lBusaid, the Board always had
the option to provide an additional chance to appea

Mr. Sikes said he did not believe there was angttvr. Henry could say that

could change his mind, based on his reading andratahding of the process, the
ordinance, and the obvious work that was still et the structure. He said he
did not believe Mr. Henry was anywhere close to pletng the necessary

repairs, and he did not see how he could justifietise.

Mr. Sikes asked who had prepared the chart of taskisdates and when was it
submitted. Mr. King stated it was submitted by Menry today, on February 10,

2010. Ms. Hauth said that was a chart that stadf dreated for Mr. Henry at the
beginning of the process to track the deadlineseatensions and was provided
as a status report of where he was. She saidhidn® kIr. Henry had submitted

today was the “final version.” Mr. Sikes said tfeart indicated that 5 of the 12
items had been satisfied. Ms. Hauth said thoderbsi had been completed, but
the remaining 7 had not been addressed.

Ms. Lunsford said then Mr. Henry had that inforroatof what was expected and
when it was expected to be completed. Ms. Hauthtkat was correct.

Mr. Sikes said regarding the complainant’s letiielpoked like it originally was

not enumerated but was bullet points and someodegbae back and placed
numbers beside the bullet points. He asked whodoaé that. Mr. King stated
those numbers had been handwritten in when thénatigvas delivered to him.

Mr. Sikes said the first thing that the complaiettér said was that closer
examination would likely bring to light several ethserious problems, and his
interpretation would be that the complaint letteedfied certain things that had

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



been identified, but since the complainant could alosely inspect the property
he was saying there were likely other issues tleahdd been unable to identify
without closer inspection. He said to him that maeénse, in that the Zoning
Officer's determination was indeed correct in theéeo.

Mr. Hartkopf agreed. He said in the chart, he ymesd that there was no
argument that the remaining 7 items had not beewptaied. Ms. Hauth said she
was unaware of any disagreement as to the stathe oémaining items.

Mr. Hartkopf said those were the points he had aduo clarify. He said since

the ordinance had been crafted in its current statend 2003, it had been a long
and drawn out process with some fairly wide-cadk rnbat were eventually

refined to have a more manageable ordinance. Mdrtkbpf said there had been
concern expressed by one of the Planning Board resdd that time that the

ordinance allowed for neighbor on neighbor actiang that he had a problem
with one person being able to tell another persbatwhey could or could not do

with their property, but it was a good ordinance \idhat it was supposed to do
which was to preserve historic buildings in a taat cared about its history.

Mr. Hornik said the General Statutes specificallyharized towns with historic
districts to adopt a demolition by neglect ordirancHe said they had gone
through a long process and received a lot of pubiut, noting from his
perspective the ordinance was difficult becausedquired so many steps to be
taken before there was actually a determinatiodesholition by neglect. Mr.
Hornik said that was precisely because some mendbehe public had believed
that the ordinance would be used by one neighbamaganother for spiteful
things. He said that was why the process beganawitomplaint by a citizen, and
it was then referred to Town staff who must invgetie and independently verify
whether there appeared to be demolition by negid&atg place. Mr. Hornik said
when the Town staff made that determination it &&d to go to the HDC, and
the HDC had to determine that there was probablsecdo believe there was
demolition by neglect, and then it had to go toRfenning Director to notice and
hold a hearing. Mr. Hornik said those intermedsteps had been built in as a
fail safe to make sure that the ordinance wouldoeotised to pit neighbor against
neighbor.

Ms. Lunsford said it looked like all the proceduresd the formality had been
adhered to, and asked was there any reason tovéaiberwise. Ms. Hauth
replied no, noting every time staff had taken g sfieey had rechecked the
ordinance and conferred with Mr. Hornik to makeestirey were adhering to the
ordinance. Ms. Lunsford said then there really magxcuse for the Demolition
by Neglect order not to have been completed. Mauthl said that was her
perception, noting she believed the last step wasHénry not performing the
tasks required.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



MOTION:

10

Mr. Hartkopf asked what the next step was if theAB@oard of Adjustment)
upheld the Demolition by Neglect ruling. Ms. Hastid she would have to take
the issue to the Town Board for authorization fatufe enforcement action to
attempt to collect the civil penalties.

Mr. Hornik said at present they had sent Mr. Hettwy Notice of Civil Penalty
which was $100 a day, but that had been staid &ppipeal. He said if the Board
were to affirm Ms. Hauth's determination, then thewn could commence an
assessment of civil penalties and collection of s¢hgoenalties. He said
theoretically the Town could get a court order celtipg Mr. Henry to perform
the remaining items of work, but no one wanted itdme to that point.

Mr. Hartkopf said in the spirit of being charitaldad cautious, he believed Mr.
Remington had a point in that they ought to undaegtwhat the Town meant by
the term “site” which was the key to Mr. Henry'spgal. But, he said, he had to
say that he believed the ordinance as crafted widy &traightforward and that

staff had been diligent and deliberate in theioef. Mr. Hartkopf said while he

may be willing to have the issue continued for omenth, he believed the day
after one month should be when the civil penaliyust commence. He said that
was only because while the appellant had been giwveny latitude by staff to

appear and state his case and he had not takhe had not been given that
opportunity by the BOA. But, he said, he was ndling to see the issue pushed
off beyond one month.

Mr. Hornik said his suggestion would be to give Menry until the next meeting
to appear, only because if the Board decided tonvatind if Mr. Henry decided to
appeal in court, then he wanted to be able to sajh¢ judge that despite
everything the Town had given Mr. Henry yet one endnance to state his case.
He said that might be worth waiting 30 days.

Mr. Hartkopf said it might also prompt Mr. Henry taove with all due swiftness
to resolve the outstanding 7 items on the ordeorbethe Board arrived at the
March 10, 2010 meeting.

Mr. Remington said he had the impression that Mmmy had said it would be his
preference for the Board to continue the appettiédMarch 10, 2010 meeting so
that he could attend. Mr. King said that was atitréMr. Remington said to him
it made a difference that Mr. Henry had asked foortinuance, which was likely
why he had not felt it necessary to appear tonighé said he agreed with Mr.
Hartkopf that he would be unwilling to continue tiesue beyond the next
meeting.

Mr. Sikes agreed as well, noting it would give Menry one last chance.

Mr. Sikes moved to continue the public hearing on Case #BA0B0 to the
March 10, 2010 meetingMs. Lunsford seconded.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



VOTE:

BACK TO
ITEM #4:

11

Unanimous.

Continue hearing on Case #BA-04-2010 — Vaance request from Joe Phelps
of Orange County Farm Bureau. The request is for &-foot variance from
the 10-foot freestanding sign setback of the EDD (®nomic Development
District) zoning district to allow for the placement of a freestanding sign.
The subject property is located at 110 Millstone Dre (Orange County Tax
Map Reference #4.45R..27).

Mr. Hartkopf invited Mr. Phelps to make a statemeMr. Phelps commended
Mr. King on the work he had done, noting he hadchliberough but had also been
fair, and he had been very helpful throughout tee@ss. Mr. Phelps introduced
Howard McAdams, President of Orange County FarmeBuy and provided some
brief information about the Farm Bureau which wasoa-profit entity. He said
he believed Mr. King had said that there was onfed, but their variance was
asking for only 4 feet. Mr. King said on the dragi the 4-feet was the distance
between the back of the curb and the back of gy sind then if you put in the 8
foot sign it would be 5 feet from the street rigiftway line.

Mr. Phelps said in regards to Finding of Fact Ajati looked at the map showing
the site before construction they had purposely &f much wooded area
undisturbed as possible in order to be environnhasdascious. He said that
might not address Finding of Fact A, but that wasywhey had placed the
building where it was. Mr. Phelps said if they Heal to move the building back
4 or 5 feet to accommodate the sign which was ssgilg required by the

restrictive covenants in Old Mill, you could seattlthe slope of the land went up
even more which would have required cutting inte ttank more than 4 feet
which would have destroyed more trees and woule asreased the amount of
impervious surface.

Mr. Hornik asked if the location of the sign wasvdn by the location of the
building on the site. Mr. Phelps replied “yes,’ting they had had little area to
work with and had made the drive and the turnarcameé as small as possible
while remaining feasible. Mr. Hornik said then tbeation of the building was
placed on the site so that as many trees as pesséke preserved, and placing it
that close to the front of the lot had squeezedatrelable area and was why the
sign was proposed where it was. Mr. Phelps satiwas correct, and added that
he had not been aware that they were restricteadgoptective covenant to have a
particular size sign. He said they had not knohat the sign should have been
on the site plan, noting if they had known thattheuld have addressed the issue
sooner.

Mr. Phelps said he believed they were well belowirthmpervious surface
allowance. Mr. King responded that there was npeivious surface requirement
in that particular area because it was not in @epted watershed. He said there
was a site volume ratio that had to be compliedh wihich spoke to impervious

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



12

surface, in that you were required to have a sjesife volume ratio. Mr. King
said you took the amount of building area, parkiagd driveway area and
subtracted that from the proposed existing and gueg landscaping on site
which gave you the site volume ratio. He said ghigect was well within their
required site volume ratio.

Mr. Hartkopf asked how many parking spaces wereigea versus how many
were required by the ordinance. Mr. King said thenber of parking spaces
required by the ordinance was 16, and there werpa@es provided.

Mr. Phelps said they were providing that many beeatlhey had a number of
agents and if many were present at the same tiyewould still need parking
for customers. He said another issue was thatifteeof the storm sedimentation
pond was directly related to how much imperioudasig they had, so they had
tried to keep that to a minimum as well. Mr. Pefaid they had placed the
retention pond in the best available location basethe topography of the land.

Mr. Remington said then the sign out there now wagpose to be bigger to
comply with the restrictive covenants. Mr. Phefjagd that was correct, noting
the drawing in the packet was what the sign shindd like, but they had put up
a temporary sign to indicate they were open foirtass. Mr. Remington said the
sign erected was perfectly visible, although it wagnitely smaller than the other
signs. Mr. Phelps said that sign had been mowvea their former location so
that they would have some identifying marker ath&r new location.

Mr. Remington said to have an 8 foot sign thatrehtlimpinge on the curb or the
parking lot, you would almost have to make anothenp out which would mean
eliminating a couple of parking spots.

Ms. Lunsford asked had Mr. Phelps looked at otiptions, and did they have an
alternative plan. Mr. Phelps replied no, indicgttey had not identified any
other options.

Mr. Hornik asked was that sign design requiredHgyrestrictive covenants, in its
shape and configuration. Mr. Phelps replied “yesdctly. Mr. Hornik said then
either they did not have a sign, or they compligiththe restrictive covenants, or
they had something else that did not comply with bstrictive covenants. Mr.
Phelps said that was correct.

Mr. Remington said his point had been that somgtliha similar size to the
temporary sign would be visible to the public. ¥helps said it was a covenant
issue, noting the sign cost thousands of dollacs i@ did not want to design a
sign and then have to remove it because it didwest the restrictive covenants.
He said that was why he was before the Board thésiag.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



13

Mr. Phelps said in regards to Finding of Fact Beyttwere severely limited

because of the main stormwater drain that came fr@rlot across the parking
lot, and then Duke Power had put a high-power fiareher into the lot than was

normal, which further limited them on the configlima of the stormwater drain.

He said in addition there were fiber optic linestba premises. Mr. Hornik said

those lines as well as the power lines could haenbmoved but it would have
been expensive and time consuming. Mr. Phelps tbaigl had actually moved

the phone lines, but it would have been cost prot#bto move the power and

fiber optic lines. He said it was his opinion tlitatvould be impossible for them

to operate their business without a sign, notingmany businesses could survive
without a sign and it would adversely affect thenk@8ureau.

Mr. Phelps said regarding Finding of Fact D thaswae area where they likely
had not done enough, but in his opinion this w8®ard of Adjustment and what
he was asking for was an adjustment. He said raeratood there were
guidelines that had to be adhered to, but he davkthat there had been two
houses that were begun in the setback and the avfreere had come before the
BOA (Board of Adjustment), and the BOA had grantieel variance to allow the
house to remain. But, he said, the BOA’s messagédt owner was that they
would allow it that one time but never again. Mhelps said he did not know if
the same thought could apply in this case, inttingt sign would be allowed this
one time.

Mr. Phelps pointed out that he had noticed th&in®t 4 of the other businesses in
the business park had signs that were the samag®dtom the road that they
were requesting the variance to be. Mr. King agjtbéat was most likely correct.

Ms. Lunsford asked if those other properties hatlwailar issues with the storm
drains.

Mr. Hartkopf responded they did not, noting theyraven the right side as you
traveled down the road. He said this particulte wias under a disadvantage due
to the way that the water was carried down thraigh area, and in that particular
place there was a large culvert and conduit urtdedtiveway. Mr. Hartkopf said
as you continued in the business park the swalhefwater ran further away
from the road and eventually the right-hand sidehef road went up but not as
radically as it was going down in front of this peular property. He said so the
excavations for the culvert and the conduit welet dess dramatic than it was in
this particular location.

Mr. Remington said then water drained down to thts which had taken out
quite a bit of useable space.

Mr. Hartkopf said in addition you were getting & ¢ water coming up from Old
NC 86 because it was higher and it drained downrtiael and did so fairly
dramatically in this location.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



14

Mr. Remington asked had the drainage been likeghat to construction. Mr.

Phelps said the stormwater drain was there andupak lot of space, and it took
the stormwater from the bank and from across tteest He said the pond itself
took care of only the stormwater from their par@geuot to get the first inch of
water from the roof and the parking lot.

Mr. Phelps said in regards to Finding of Fact E,bleéeved their sign was an
important benefit and believed that the size of tBmporary sign was not
adequate. He said he believed Mr. Remington had béle to locate that sign
because he was looking for it specifically.

Mr. Remington said the question was if the new sigould sit where the
temporary sign was now sitting. Mr. Phelps saievduld be in that area, but
would be larger. Mr. Remington asked if the sikz¢he temporary sign was legal
in terms of the right-of-way. Mr. Phelps said hd dot believe the temporary
sign infringed on the setback, but it did not ntbetrestrictive covenant.

Ms, Lunsford asked had the new sign already besigioed and purchased. Mr.
Phelps said it had been designed but they had dadwlit at present, although
they had already spent funds on it. He said inopision the sign did not have
the potential to undermine the purpose of the ame, and believed the Board
could allow a variance to be specific to a paracussue and not allow it to be
precedent for future issues.

Mr. Phelps said that it was quite a struggle tddbaibuilding and meet some of
the guidelines that were required by the Town, pothted out that they had
outgrown their previous building that was outside Town'’s limits. He said any
time you grew your business you had to look forcsphat was adequate, and the
space identified just happened to be in the Tovim#s. Mr. Phelps said he
knew that the tax value on the new building woiltdlyy be around half a million,
and they would be paying over $3,000 in taxes & Town. He said he was
pleading for mercy in that he would ask the Towtryao help businesses such as
the Farm Bureau.

Mr. Hartkopf asked was it accurate to say that pheposed sign would go
roughly where the temporary sign was located, nspeifically would it go on
the street side or the building side of that culve¥ir. Phelps said it would be
almost in the same location as the temporary sighjt would be closer to the
road and wider than the temporary sign. Mr. Hatkeaid then it would be on
the building side of the concrete culvert. Mr. IpBesaid when you entered the
parking lot it would be on the left. Mr. Hartkophid in the stormwater path
underneath the building there was a huge concipt and the sign would be on
the building side of that concrete pipe.

Mr. Sikes said where the current sign was, theestilglid not just run under the
driveway but extended quite a bit down to catchvilager coming down the road.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



15

He said where the sign would be, some portion ofauld be on top of the
culvert.

Mr. Hartkopf said then it would be closer to thekiag lot. Mr. Hornik said the
street side was the north side, and the buildidg sias the south side, and the
sign would be closer to the south side.

Mr. Hartkopf said he was looking at Attachment Be(tsign specification
drawing) which indicated there was a 4 inch pipe also indicated that there was
a 4 foot deep, 2 foot wide something, and asked tta something was around
that 4 inch pipe.

Mr. Sikes said he believed it was the concreteirigaio support the weight of the
sign. Mr. King said he assumed that as well.

Mr. Hartkopf said then that 4 foot deep, two foatievapparatus would be on the
parking lot side of the concrete pipe and the ditalnich was where the

temporary sign was now. Mr. Phelps replied thas warect. Mr. Hartkopf said

then 3 feet of the sign would be out away fromhbeding side and would extend
over top of where the culvert was located. He $iaad would mean a maximum
of 3 feet beyond what could be towards the road.

Mr. Hartkopf said his concern was exactly how thgnswould fit onto the
property and what was the maximum amount of “darh&geould cause. Mr.
Phelps said he understood the concern, notindhtedhought was that the footing
could be redesigned because it was likely they ri@tdthought about anything
being under it. He said the deeper and wider &rfgoor support the more it
would support, and believed it might be possiblegdesign that so that there
were two pipes that were shorter and still accoshpiine goal.

Mr. Hartkopf said his point was that as submittdtere was only so much

violence the sign could do to the ordinance becafiigat concrete pipe. He said
that 4 foot by 2 foot chunk of concrete could goctaser to the road than the side
of that culvert, so that meant that it could ontyead over that culvert by 3 feet.

Mr. Hartkopf asked what the diameter was of theextlthat went underneath the
road. Mr. Phelps said about 3 feet.

Mr. Sikes said it was smaller than 4 feet, butated at the end. Mr. Phelps said
he did not know what the exact pipe size was, towas larger than 2 feet.

Mr. Hartkopf said his thought was that the signldanly get so close to the road
because of the way the footing was laid, which ntadequestion the whole 4 or
5 foot variance question. He said the second ttiiaghad made him question it
was exactly how close it would approach the curldorgthe parking lot. Mr.
Phelps said if they had placed the sign as requoyetthe ordinance then the edge
of the sign would have come to the edge of theingriso it would be vulnerable

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



16

to someone backing into it. He said that was wigytwere requesting the
variance from the sign setback to allow the sighedad4 feet from the parking lot
curb.

Mr. Hartkopf asked was it Mr. Phelps’ testimonyttitfee Farm Bureau did not
operate as a for-profit entity. Mr. Phelps saiak thvas correct.

Mr. Hornik said if the Board was considering gragtthe variance, many times
they could consider if it was the least varianceessary to accomplish the
applicant’s purpose. He said in other words, tlo@arB might want to consider
whether 2 feet rather than 4 feet from the bacthefcurb was good enough for
the parking lot, and if so then perhaps only gthatvariance for a 7 foot setback
rather than the required 10 feet.

Mr. Sain asked if putting that large a sign thewuld hinder the sight distance of
people coming and going from the parking lot. Ming said depending on
where you took the measurement, the front edgedqmagsibly stick out as much
as 2% feet, but it depended on what point at thesway throat you measured
back from.

Mr. Phelps said that whole space was open, and ldrdscape design included
low growing shrubs. So, he said, even when thabshmatured you would still

be able to see the road as you headed out of thengdot. Mr. Phelps said that
road also went uphill and curved to the north adayn the sign, noting if the

road was straight the sign would have more of decef He said that would

provide a better view in his opinion.

Mr. Sikes said he was leaning towards if they grdrthe variance that rather than
being 4 feet from the parking lot that it be puskethewhat closer, noting there
was no parking space right there so the chandeeo$ign being hit was minimal.
He said he understood that backing up it may beéssume, but moving a little
closer to the parking lot would help. Mr. Sikesdsas far as the sign itself, since
it had not been physically purchased he suggektdhe entire width of the sign
be cut down from 8 feet to perhaps 7 feet, cutbnopches off each side, but
keeping the exact same shape. He said that woaldde an additional foot of
space and they could then move it closer to thb.cir. Sikes said he would be
much more comfortable granting a variance usinggbanario.

Mr. King said there may have been an engineering tadius used as the
reasoning for the throat of the driveway to be @pned as it was.

Mr. Phelps said he had no problem with cutting dakagnsize of the sign, noting
he believed they could do that without having someenotice that it did not meet
restrictive covenants.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



17

Mr. Sikes said even if it was noticed, they cowdter them to the Zoning Officer.
Mr. Phelps said he believed they could cut it dawteast a foot, and if practical
perhaps they could go a foot and a half. But, dd, ghey would still need a
variance to put the sign where planned. Mr. Phe$§id regarding getting the sign
closer to the curb, the dumpsters were in the backthe trash truck had to come
in and back out and turn into the drive to exit #ite. So, he said, if that trash
truck was hanging over the rear axel his sign wdoddistory. Mr. Phelps said
he would not want to bring the sign much closeth® curb. He said they had
actually tried to have two entrances into the &iteliminate problems with trash
trucks, but they had been encouraged not to do thiat King indicated that the
EDD design manual frowned multiple driveways.

Mr. Sikes said his other issue, although he didostieve it was all that feasible,
was that on the western side of the driveway ifgaked like on the drawing that
there was enough room to potentially place the siginer than placing it where
Mr. Phelps had proposed. But, he said, when he \isited the site there
appeared to be a rather steep slope there andeheavauld likely have to have a
retaining wall. Mr. Phelps said it was very stélegre, and there was a telephone
junction box as well as the high power cables &edgrate for the stormwater, all
in that location. He said that left almost no rofama sign to be placed, and if
placed there the bank property would block sight.oMr. Sikes said he assumed
it would be against the covenants to turn it patdth the road or perpendicular
from its current configuration. Mr. Phelps saidhe& not checked into that, but
did not believe it was a good idea. He said allghisign would cause people to
have to turn and look as they drove by. Mr. Sikesd if it was cantered
somewhat, the size was reduced somewhat, and ipuwhesl closer to the parking
lot, then he would be more in favor of grantingasiance. Mr. Phelps said he did
not believe cutting down the size of the sign bleast a foot would be a problem,
but would not want to push it much closer to thebdoecause of the trash truck
issue.

Mr. Hartkopf said in regards to the dumpster, he ihaticed as you drove up and
looked at the dumpsters that there were two parglages to the immediate left
that were somewhat behind the building. He askasl tiwvere some regulation that
said you could not have that dumpster pad wherewieparking places were
located. Mr. Hartkopf asked could the building @dween slide back further,
noting that the dumpster pad was right at the parkignage setback at 12 feet.
Mr. King said he did not believe there was an ardoe reason, but was a result
of how the parking lot had been designed as wdlhaslumpster pad. He said he
did not know why there were two parking spacesahleat that was the only other
place the dumpster could be placed.

Mr. Remington said when they measured building aatb, was it the farthest
projection out of anywhere on the vertical plan¢haf building, such as the eaves,
or was it from where the foundation came out of gh@und. Mr. King said the

setback was measured to the building and eaves estnd 24 inches into the

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



18

setback. Mr. Remington said by the same logiclccausign extend up to 24

inches out from a setback if the foundation of $lge did not go out to the edge
of the sign. Mr. King said that was not the wag tlegulations had been

interpreted in the past, and believed it was altbfeg eaves because they were
high off the ground rather than at ground level.

Mr. Hornik said the way the Town had interpretedttlitnguage was common in
other jurisdictions with respect to eaves, and sigiere not allowed the same
kind of overhang.

Mr. Sikes asked if shrinking the sign could be adition of approval with the

variance, or would the Board be interested in digtiseeing the design. Mr.

Sikes said he was suggesting that Mr. Phelps subngicture of the actual

redesign of the sign at 7 feet long, and moved haakards the curb by 2 feet.
Mr. King said moving it closer to the curb appeat@de an issue for Mr. Phelps,
noting his concern that pickup trucks backing uplgde in danger of hitting the
sign.

Mr. Phelps said he was worried about pushing the sloser to the curb, noting
vehicles backing up would likely hit the sign. KHaid he had no problem with
coming back with a redesign for the sign at no é&rthan 7 feet.

Mr. Hartkopf asked if the sign was kept at the sagede, would a shorter sign be
that noticeable from one office site to anothern. Rhelps said he did not believe
so. Mr. Hartkopf asked if the Farm Bureau leasedd its space to anyone else.
Mr. Phelps replied “no,” and there were no intem$ido do so. He said the
building was built for a single business use.

Mr. Sikes said in reading the Findings of Fact gsial it said a variance may be
allowed in cases involving practical difficulties mnnecessary hardship, and that
substantial evidence in the official record of tese supported all of the facts.
He said did that mean in order to grant the vagatitat all five of those
components had to be answered. Mr. Hornik saigdalefve had to be answered
in the affirmative. He stated that was State lawt,a Town regulation.

Mr. Remington asked what exactly the restrictivees@ants required for that sign.
Mr. King said the Town did not generally becomeaived with restrictive
covenants.

Mr. Hornik said he had gathered from the testimtivat the restrictive covenants
would require the design, shape and size as prdpasd in that approximate
location, he assumed.

Mr. Sikes said there were other signs in that spark that were not as large as
the one proposed here, noting there was one thaitowiek and had two tenants
listed side by side. Mr. King said he had seeresd\that did not meet EDD

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



19

requirements, but since his tenure with the Towrh&e been requiring that the
regulations be met.

Mr. Hornik commented that the further down the rolael sign was placed away
from the driveway the less good it did, becauseotild make it harder to identify
the Farm Bureau’s driveway.

Mr. Hartkopf said you could certainly make the ctss without the sign people
could drive up and down the road looking for thenF&ureau.

Mr. Remington said his biggest issue was with Figdd, and to some extent B.
He said the question was if it was really uniqud aimgular, noting he was not
sure he saw where the culvert changed things thahminstead, he said, it was
the location of the parking lot and the buildingdlahe width needed for cars to
back out. Mr. Remington said he believed anyose &oking at it would not
find it to be a unique and singular hardship, beeatey had “painted themselves
into a corner.” He said that was his problem wtitalthough he was sympathetic
to the issues. Mr. Remington said in terms of Figd, he believed a narrower
sign would provide adequate visibility. He said thiggest issue he believed was
with the restrictive covenants, which were out bé tBoard’s purview. Mr.
Remington said he agreed with Mr. Phelps that a sigs needed so that people
could find them, but he believed it would be qditelable with a narrower sign.

Mr. Hornik said how the Board made the Finding$-att depended on how they
wanted to view the circumstances by which they dpatten to this point. He said
had the sign location been a part of the origintd slesign would be one
circumstance because it could have been rearraatgbdt time. Mr. Hornik said
that might be viewed as not being a practical clitty because it could have been
addressed with the original site design. But,did,2he Board could say that they
had the plan they had, and they had what was ogrthend, and now they wanted
to put up a sign. He said under the circumstarticey faced today, if they
disregarded the fact that it could have been desdigiifferently and just looked at
what they had today, then that might make a diffeeein the Board’s
determination.

Mr. Hartkopf said in regards to Finding B, the fdloat this was a non-profit
enterprise had a fair amount of bearing, in thatas not merely an inability to
maximize profits because no profit was being made.

Mr. Sikes wondered if they should check to see wviimratcovenants would allow,
and if they would accept a small sign. Mr. Phedpsl the restrictive covenants
gave instructions as to how the sign was to begdesl, but the control of the
property had changed several times since thosenaot® were written. He said
having said that, the original covenants statedl tiina sign should be as he had
originally proposed, but someone would have to mefohat. Mr. Phelps said he
would gamble on making the sign somewhat smallet,did not believe they

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



20

could make it small enough not to require a vaganide said even with reducing
the size of the sign, his position remained thaytbhould not be any closer than
4 feet from the curb. Mr. Phelps said he agreesd lsacking out may not hit the
sign, but trucks certainly would. He said 4 feetswenough distance, but no
closer.

Mr. Phelps said even with cutting the size of tigh dlown, he believed they
would still need a variance of at least 3 and up tieet. He said they could
reduce the size of the lettering, but it needeldetdarge enough to be easily read
from the road. Mr. Phelps said in the design ifi yeduced the available space
too much, then it would not allow room for the eerhl they were required to
display. Mr. King said they had only about 7 f&em the back of the curb and
the setback to work with at the widest point, aeduvas basing that on the as-built
survey and not the actual site plan.

Mr. Sikes said reading back over the Findings aftfFee was concentrating on
Finding B, and he was having trouble coming up witivay for that to work. He
said he would be very interested in finding outatlyawhat the current covenants
were for signs, just to see if there were some ghsithat could be made to the
shape or size. Mr. Phelps said there may be, &ligvied that continuity in the
business park was a consideration in that their sigould not be much different
from those already existing on the various siteke said he wanted the sign to
look as similar as possible to what was alreadthenbusiness park. Mr. Sikes
agreed, but said his feeling was that there weneessigns in the business park
that were different, noting that the Community OBank sign was different
although its frontage was on Old NC 86, and Casokinancial Advisors’ sign
was different as well. Mr. Sikes said it was hesgpective as a member of the
BOA and in looking at the ordinances that it wagdmel their purview to say that
another set of circumstances, being the covend&msause of their aesthetic
requirements, superseded the BOA'’s Findings of.Fact

Mr. Hornik said relevant considerations, and onghef things that would make
the restrictive covenants relevant to the Boards wWathat was the minimum
variance necessary to accomplish what the propsvher needed to accomplish.
He said knowing what the covenants required mayrbkevant, but they did not
know that yet. Mr. Hornik said secondly, was titaation that made the variance
request necessary self-created; that is, createelsmv by the applicant’s own
actions. He said the language in the covenantshaag some bearing on that as
well, and the whole sequence of how they had gdtighis point also had some
bearing. Mr. Hornik said to him it sounded likeetBoard was searching for a
way to make the Findings of Fact and to find a veagccommodate the applicant
to some extent. He said if they wanted to do tthet,best way for them to help
the applicant was to have the applicant provideréstrictive covenants for the
Board’s review.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



21

Mr. Remington said then the covenants were somgthiat the Board could take
into account. Mr. Hornik said they could be taketo consideration.

Ms. Lunsford said the applicant may also be ablestjuest a variance with the
covenants. Mr. Hornik said they needed to know. thde said if the covenants
did require a certain dimension and/or requirednthe be in a certain location,
and that the location on the site was that locatioen it may be that somehow if
they could fit a 6 foot wide sign rather than afo8t wide sign on the site then
perhaps the applicant would not need a variancéf, loe needed a variance that it
would be for only 2 feet instead of for 5 feet.

Mr. Phelps said he would get all the informationcbeld locate and provide it to
the Board. He said as he mentioned earlier, o#is&i covenants were recorded
and were supposed to be binding, but were usel@gissameone enforced them.
Mr. Phelps said the Farm Bureau wanted to do thihggight way, and was not
sure that anyone was really enforcing the covengerse. He said his point was
that if someone did, there was a trigger in thérictive covenants that they could
be enforced. Mr. Phelps said any sign they gotlevaost thousands, but his
point was if the restrictive covenants allowed thenalter the size of the sign,
then they were at the point that they would eresiga that promoted the Farm
Bureau instead of trying to be in harmony with oshe the business park. But,
he said, it would still be no closer to the roadrnlother signs erected in the
business park.

Mr. Phelps said they were just trying to make wthaty had work, but someone
may one day come along and say the sign did not theecovenants. He said
there was actually a building in the park that hatlreceived prior permission to
be built as it was, but they had taken a gambletl@d own had approved it. Mr.
Phelps said if the restrictive covenants were esfithey could likely cause that
building to be torn down. He said he believed thagl an attractive building, but
if they did not get the variance it would not be #nd of the world. Mr. Phelps
said personally he would like to have a sign tbhakéd very close to others in the
park, even if it was cut down a foot or so.

Mr. Phelps said he could wait another month, amebitld not make a difference.
He said he would bring back whatever informatiom Board asked for to the next
meeting and then try again. Mr. Phelps said rdgssdof what the covenants
might say they wanted an attractive sign that wasarmony with the rest of the
business park. He said if this was held over ®oNfarch 10, 2010 meeting, he
would ask that a decision be made at that time.

Mr. Sikes said he believed the Board wanted to &nday to do it, and ideally
doing that without granting a variance. But, hiel sthe way it was submitted he
believed some things would have to be changed.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #5b:

ITEM #6:

22

Mr. Sikes moved to continue Case #BA-04-2010 to the March20Q0 meeting,
and that the applicant would bring back at thaktiime restrictive covenants for
the business park for review, drawings that degictkernative orientations for
the sign, and options of how the size of the sigghirbe reducedMs. Lunsford
seconded.

Unanimous.

Review of Final Order for Case #BA-10-200 — Arthur Ruzensky of AA
Graphics, LLC is appealing an adverse decision ohe Zoning Officer as it
relates to the replacement of a freestanding sigm iviolation of the required
freestanding sign setback requirement of the ZoningOrdinance. The
property subject to the appeal is located at 202 Qdinal Drive (Orange
County Tax Map Reference #4.42.B.3H) and is curreit zoned HIC (High
Intensity Commercial).

Mr. Hartkopf said absent anyone making a motionrettmmmit, he would sign it
into law. Mr. Hornik said he had reviewed the mec@and the minutes and
believed they accurately reflected the Board’s sleni

Mr. Hartkopt said hearing no motion to recommé,ould sign and execute the
documents.

Committee and Staff reports.

Planning Board:

Mr. Remington said last month the Planning Board iits public hearing and the
update to the Parks and Recreation Master Planowabte agenda but no one
spoke. He said the remainder of the meeting wastdd to the ordinance
rewrite. Mr. Remington said there were a couplehafgs that the consultant,
Roger Waldon with Clarion, had brought forward tdatisions would need to be
made on. He said one that might be of interettitoBoard was that Mr. Waldon
was suggesting there be a provision for what waldeda‘administrative
adjustment” which would allow staff to deviate withcertain parameters on a
variety of issues related to unique or unusualucitstances, where the deviation
was judged to make things better. Mr. Remingtod sae of those was setbacks.

Mr. Hornik said one of the reasons for setting éhpsrameters within limited
circumstances was so that minor adjustments wootich@ed to come back to the
Board, and staff could approve a change withinghset parameters. Mr. King
said from what he understood the Special Excefiermits that the BOA saw
every so often would fall to staff, in that therewld be some set criteria that such
exceptions would have to fall under. For instariee said, if a part of a house
was already nonconforming and an owner wanted tbadit would have fall
within the set parameters.

Mr. Remington said he was not sure there was amytproposed that would
relate to the particular case they had just hdartlhe had asked the question that

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



23

if staff could make those kinds of deviations wlot the Board of Adjustment,
and could the same thing apply to the BOA when thag a Conditional Use
Permit or something similar so that they would hawme flexibility. He said he
had made the comment that the BOA may not necéssaaint to have that
flexibility because it may cause more complicatiohat it was something to
consider.

Mr. Hornik said staff had just completed the firah through to rearrange the
current ordinance into a more useable format, aladidd was in the process of
making some revisions. He said they expected e hadraft ready for Planning
Board, Board of Adjustment, and Town Board reviemnstime in early March

for more substantive comments.

Mr. Remington said that going into this they hadught that any substantive
changes would be made during the ordinance revimitiethey now realized it was
not practical and the rewrite was more about ggttire ordinances into a form
that was workable and understandable, in that theyld not have separate
zoning regulations and subdivision regulations thaght contradict each other.
Mr. Remington said there were a limited set of #dhmat would be included in the
rewrite and that would be the next step, but it Mawt be wholesale changes in
all the content. He said changes would be theptiae not the rule.

Mr. Hornik said it would be a huge step in the tighrection, but it would not fix
everything because there was too much to do inoth@tprocess.

Rail Station Task Force:

Mr. King stated they were trying to come up witkanceptual development plan
for the Town-owned tract that showed where thestation would go, as well as
a police/fire station and a possible performing anter, and still maintaining
space for the HYAA (Hillsborough Youth Athletic Asgation) ball fields. He
said they had also been looking at the Collinstttacdhe south behind Daniel
Boone and adjacent to the railway corridor and t85come up with a very
conceptual diagram for what kind of developmenytiveuld want to see on that
tract of land. Mr. King said they would be meetimg February 15, 2010 to go
over some additional conceptual drawings for thesf-owned tract as well as the
initial conceptual drawings for land uses on thdli@®tract.

Mr. King said on January 28, 2010 the federal gorent had announced that
NCDOT (North Carolina Department of Transportatibiad been awarded $545
million for the southeast high speed rail projectd they were fairly certain the
rail station had not been included with that fumgdialthough NCDOT had

submitted in their grant application the Hillsbogbustation as well as the
Lexington station. He said they would know foresnext week, but another grant
would be coming and NCDOT had said they would restuldor those two

stations in that second grant. Mr. King said tivgye again asking Congressman

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



24

David Price for some congressional appropriationding for the rail station,
noting the deadline for the upcoming cycle wasaheé of the month.

Interview Candidate for In-Town Alternate Vacancy - Bill Whitmore.

Mr. King noted that Bill Whitmore was present to ingerviewed for a vacancy
on the Board. He said Mr. Whitmore had been befioeeBoard in the past, and
was seeking to take Brad Curelop’s seat in thatenie would expire at the end of
the month. Mr. King noted that the upcoming vatamavere for an In-Town

Alternate seat and In-Town Regular seat.

Mr. Whitmore provided some brief information regagl his background and
interests, saying that his family had moved tod#itirough a year and a half ago,
and were renovating a house on West Queen Streetvanld soon be moving
into it. He said Mr. King and Stephanie Truebldoald been very helpful in
getting over the hurdles associated with renovationthe historic district, and
had noted that in his conversations with Mr. Kimgtthe had an attitude and
outlook of how he might make their plans work. Mvhitmore said that had
made serving on this Board attractive to him, rgptire had encountered that
attitude at every level of local government as thegame new residents. He said
he believed he would be able to contribute to aadn from service to the Town.

Mr. Whitmore said he had 30 years of corporated#aind him, having spent the
last 10 years in Chapel Hill before deciding to make move to Hillsborough.
He said their children were grown and they had ed@nb downsize, and since
they had fallen in love with Hillsborough they haglgun looking for a home. Mr.
Whitmore said he was looking for a way to contrébtd his new Town in some
way, and believed this Board might be the rightela

Mr. Sain said there were times when they had td @eh the laws as they were
written regardless of what they might feel showtddone, but they had to restrain
themselves and abide by those laws.

Mr. Whitmore said it had been interesting to héardiscussion on the new UDO
(Unified Development Ordinance), noting he workethwHabitat for Humanity
and had spoken with Town Commissioner Mike Geribgua how things were
going, and he had referred to the fact that thesewgeing to try to build in some
latitude or administrative freedom for affordableuking. He wondered how the
Board felt about having more freedom or wiggle room

Mr. Sikes said he liked the idea of allowing stffhandle more routine issues
that were straightforward, and there had been abwdrthose in the past few
months. But, he said, when it came to larger gid®s he liked having specific
guidelines that indicated exactly what had to beej@nd if there were questions
then there had to be very compelling reasons tbdtherwise.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



25

Mr. Hartkopf said there were times that the Boarorked very hard to find
creative solutions for a particular applicant. Bhd it was not a question of
whether an applicant was deserving, it was a questi a viable hole in the
ordinance or was the ordinance saying somethingdadly did not mean what it
said in that particular instance. For instanceséid, the ordinance might say a
sidewalk was required, but there were issues vi#t in that did the ordinance
really mean that a sidewalk should be provided plaee where no continuity
would ever be achieved.

Mr. Hornik said the sidewalk issue had come uatRlanning Board meeting as
being one of the types of situations where theyewguing to try to establish
presumptive standards that generally speaking dstateat would be required.
But, he said, if an applicant came forward and @asdtablish good reason why
the presumptive standards should not apply ind¢hase, whichever board had the
authority could waive or adjust the standard.

Mr. Hartkopf said that sounded really good becahsg would not have to work
so hard, but the curse of it was what concerned Hita said if they had to work
really hard to grant something like that, then he ot believe that they or
subsequent members of the Board would say thathhdtbeen a precedent
initiation. Mr. Hartkopf said if finite or closelgirawn situations converged to say
that the ordinance did not really mean what it saithat particular instance, then
if you opened that up you did run the risk of seftprecedent or a de facto
precedent. He said it would also place a gredtafgaressure on a staff member
who was paid to do those sorts of things and hadpervisor, versus a citizen
board who was not paid but were volunteers.

Mr. Hartkopf said he had long believed that youldawot write everything into
law and have it work out well.

Mr. Whitmore said during the Farm Bureau sign déston, he had seen the
Board deliberating and trying to find an avenud thauld work for the applicant
and still comply. He said he was a fairly new t@alhaving only been in the real
estate business for five years, and said he wasjostl beginning to scratch the
surface of what the Board dealt with on a regulssiss He asked was there any
training that would bring him up to speed more glyic

Mr. Sikes said that Mr. King could provide infornmat on potential training

opportunities, noting he believed there was oneicgrap soon. Mr. King said

he believed there was one in Greensboro at thektid month on quasi-judicial
decision making, but he did not know if it was tate to sign up. He said there
were other training opportunities that would be enspecific to this Board, and
he would provide some information to Mr. Whitmoreaalater date. Mr. King

said he could also provide some training for Mr.idlore in his office, as could

Mr. Hornik, that was a little more in depth.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



26

Mr. Whitmore stated he was involved with the Gre&kapel Hill Association of
Realtors, so was somewhat familiar with parliamsnfaocedures. Mr. Hornik
said that this Board was not hard and fast ongagntary procedure or Roberts
Rules of Order. He said they tried to follow pamiientary procedure as much as
possible, but at times it seemed that the greateistakes the more formal they
became.

Mr. Sikes said they wanted to stay out of countnaigh as possible and make Mr.
Hornik’s job of defending the Board as easy as iptess Mr. Hornik said that
was exactly what he wanted.

Mr. Hartkopf asked if Mr. King had reserved this @@ any space in the
upcoming training in Greensboro. Mr. King repliea, that no one had replied in
the affirmative.

Mr. Sikes said he would be interested in a trairsegsion just for this Board. Mr.
Hornik said he had talked with other boards abbat &is well, and it might be
possible to hold some kind of joint session. Bgt,said, this Board’s standards
were very different in some ways, but it was wottiies to do such training
periodically, at least once every one to two years.

Mr. Whitmore asked apart from a willing volunteetat was the Board looking
for. Mr. Sain replied someone with common sense.

Mr. Remington said common sense along with a vghiess to look at the details
of issues. He said it was helpful to read throthghpacket of materials prior to
the meeting and get familiar with the issues. Remington said when at all
possible, he tried to visit the sites that they ldde considering at the meeting to
get a feel for those issues, such as had beerasisanith the Farm Bureau sign.

Mr. Sain said it was helpful for him to visit th&es noting it helped him to
visually understand what was on paper. He saill thi¢ Colonial Inn case, you
could plainly see what work had been accomplistietivehat had not.

Mr. Hartkopf said it was important during a meetiogstay on point and at the
same time not get too frustrated with the sub-tatgyéhat the Board members
went on from time to time. He said for instancdéiew he had asked about the
Farm Bureau dumpsters he was trying to understamygl twey were right up
against the building storage setback, but there seasmuch room between the
building setback and where the building actuallgdre Mr. Hartkopf said he had
wondered if there was something about where thielibgiwas placed that made
the building move forward that much, and why themre two parking places
back there. Mr. Hartkopf said he had driven in driden out of that lot six times
trying to look at it from every angle, noting it sadd how it had been placed on
the site. He said his point was it was importantisit the sites.

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



MOTION:

VOTE:

ITEM #7:

27

Mr. Sikes said he believed Mr. Hartkopf's line efsoning for going down that
path was that one of those Findings of Fact hace#iung to do with whether the
applicant had caused the hardship themselves Hbtnik said there was more to
that in terms of the placement of the building #melway the site was set up.

Mr. Hartkopf said it was helpful to ask questiomsitthad definitive answers,
noting early on he had asked some fairly open egdedtions, but now he tried
to ask questions that were not so open ended,cundlly tended to ask yes or no
guestions as much as possible. He said the nesompé¢hat would look at these
applications would be superior court judges, andidenot want to provide them
opportunities for laughter.

Ms. Lunsford said she was ordinarily quick to mdkeisions, and serving on this
Board had been a lesson in patience in that yoldamt make quick decisions.
She said the more you dug the more you found isthatsvere unclear, so their
job was not black and white.

Mr. Sain said that was why you had to stay opendeunhabout the issues the
Board faced.

Ms. Lunsford said she did believe the sign issumukkhhave been a 30 minute
discussion and not an hour and a half discussmit,vgould be nice to figure out
a way to do that.

Mr. Hartkopf thanked Mr. Whitmore for his interest serving, noting
Hillsborough was a great small town with its owiogyncrasies. Mr. Whitmore
stated he had actually enjoyed the discussioretresing.

Mr. Sain remarked you could not help but learntaéving on the BOA.

Mr. Sikes moved to recommended to the Town Board appointnaénBill
Whitmore to a vacancy on the Board of Adjustmentaasin-Town Alternate.
Mr. Remington seconded.

Unanimous.

Adjourn.

Mr. Sikes moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:51 p.Ms. Lunsford seconded.
The motion was adopted unanimously.

Approved:

Tom King, AICP, CZO
Senior Planner
Secretary to the Board

Board of Adjustment
February 10, 2010



